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I ndependent Auditor's Report

To Honorable Members of City Council
City of Fowler, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesstype
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Fowler, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, ln making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Fowler as of June 30, 2019, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary I nformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, Schedules of the City's Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability, and Schedules of City Pension Contributions as listed in the table of contents
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards, we have also issued our report dated November 29,
2021, on our consideration of City of Fowler internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Fowler internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Fresno, California
November 29,2021
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CITY OF FOWLER

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 20{9

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Fowler's (City's) financial performance provides an overview of
the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. lt should be read in conjunction with
the City's financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

u Total net position was $30,167,197 on June 30,2019.

Overall revenues and transfers totaled $8,712,945, which exceeded expenses of $6,944,981 by
$1,767 ,964.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a
comprehensive overview of the City. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of
statements that present financial information from different perspectives:

tr Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both
shortterm and long-term information about the entity's overallfinancial position.

o Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the City operations in more
detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the
government's assets and liabilities. All the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. Net
position, (the difference between the assets and liabilities) is one way to measure the City's financial health
or position.

u Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position is an indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

tr To assess the overall health of the City, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors such
as changes in the property tax base, changes in program funding by the Federal and State
governments, and condition of facilities.

tr The government-wide financial statements of the City include government activities. Most of the
City's basic services are included here, such as community development, public safety and general
administration. Lease revenue funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.
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Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds not
the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds are required to be established by state law and
by bond covenants. The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes or to show that the City is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain ievenues. The City has
three kinds of funds:

tr Governmental funds - All of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash
flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently,
the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short{erm view that helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus
of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the
government funds statements that explain the relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietarv funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to
outside customers or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the
statement of net position and the statement of activities.

Fidueiary funds - the_City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others; for the City,
the Redevelopment Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund is a trust fund. The City is
responsible for ensuring that assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended
Purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the City's fiduciary activities are reported
in the fiduciary fund financial statements. We exclude these activities from the City-wide financial
statements because the City cannot use the assets to finance its operations.

o

tr
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The City's combined net position was $30, 167,197 at June 30, 2019. See Table 1

Table 1

Net Position

The current year balances include prior period adjustments which are disclosed in footnote 23.

*ln prior year, the advances were presented as assessment receivables, in current year, the assessment
receivable balances adjusted for current year activity have been reclassed to advances. The advances
within governmental funds have offset each other on the financial statement.
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Business- Eusiness.

Type

Activities

Total

Percentage

Ghange

Governmental

Activities

Type Governmental

ActivitiesActivities

20192019 20'18 201 I 20'19.2018

Cash

Cash with Fiscal Agent

Receivables:

Accounts, Net and lntergovernmental

Community Loans
*Advances 

to Enterprise Fund
*Advances 

to Successor Agency
*Advances 

in Governmental Funds

lnventory

Land Held for Resale

Deposits with Others

Capital Assets, Net of

Accumulated Depreciation

$ 9,866,685

480,803

$ 1,094,040 $ 8,431,240 $

480,656

956,958 16.75o/o

0.03%

1,441,610

361,163

100,000

356,000

146,909 665,263

5'10,631

1 25,000

409,000

307,1 93

123,255 <100o/o

(29.27o/ol

(20.00o/")

(12.e6%)

(100.00%)

(100.00%)

(100.00%)

<100%

58,442

1 38,316

1 53,794

64,705

20,454,423 4,134,868 20,462,203 4,253,409 (0.51%)

AL ASSETS 33,1 99,000 5,375,817 31,609,685 5,392,064 4.250/o

Outflows of Resources - Pensions 886,557 288,061 1,191 ,362 305,602 (21.53"/")

Accounls Payable

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued lnterest Payable

Consumer Overpayments and Deposits

Unearned Revenue

Compensated Absences

Net Pension Liability

Long-Term Debt

968,087

37,325

37,526

44,954 226,322

6,734

38,468 <100%

<100%

<100%

1.00%

(100,00%)

14.16yo

4.49%

5.44%

22,846

82,880 82,056

1 1 6,355

3,1 06,827

2,1 58,509

37,392

1,184,411

1,669,223

177,903

104,949

3,455,239

1,901,763

29,730

651,741

1,728,523

LIABILITIES 3,041,706 5,872,910 2,530,518 12.65%

Defened lnflows of Resources - Pensions 66,863 49,040 124,565 (26,345) 18.00%

POSITION

Net lnvestment in Capital Assets

Restricted for:

State and Federal Programs

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Special Purpose

Unreshicted

18,776,717 2,405,645 18,560,440 2,524,886 0.74%

1,286,376

663,756

3,241,676

795,743

2,894,143 107,487

1,176,200

387,352

3,558,314

410,852

2,229,758 668,607

9.37To

71.36Yo

(8.e0%)

93.68o/o

3.56%

AL NET POSITION $ 27,594,065 $ 2,573,132 $ 26,803,572 $ 3,193,493 057%



Changes in Net Position

The City's total revenues, including business-type activities, were $8,712,945. Most of the revenue comes
from various taxes, $4,929,032 (56.57%). Operating Grants accounted for $1,196,733, (13.73%) and
combined charges for services totaled $2,128,087 (24.42%) of total revenues.

The total cost of all programs and services, including businesstype activities, was $6,944,981. The City's
expenses are predominately related to General Government and Public Safety (50.29%). Water Services
accounted for 25.80% of total costs. The remaining expenses accounted for community and debt service
costs.

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

** For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City had a net prior period adjustment of $(1,451,045) for
Governmental Activities and $(146,787) for Business Type Activities (Note 23) due to adjustments to
capitalized assets for proper classification and accumulated depreciation, adjustments for long term debt
accounting method forthe 2010 bond, and properallocation the City's share of the Net Pension Liability
according to GASB 68.

Govern mental Activities

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $5,1 53,471.

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the City's functions as well as each function's net cost (total cost less
fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded by
charges for services, operating grants and capital grants and contributions.
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Governmental
Activities

Business-
Type

Activities
Governmental

Activities

Business-
TYPe

Activities

Total
Percentage

2019 2019 2018 2018 2019-2018

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants
General Revenues:

Taxes

Rental lncome

lnvestment lncome

Miscellaneous

Transfers, Net

$ 809,985

1 ,1 96,733
$ 1 ,318,1 02 $ 775,327

762,796
$ 1,332,784 0.95%

56.89%

4,929,032

12,483

185,677

259,459

5,515,985

182,754

26,068

34,724

45,776

(10.64%)
(93.17o/o)

<100o/o

<100.00%

(96.42o/o)1 640

1,474

(1,640)

1,023

6,580

@5,776\
AL REVENUES 395 009 1,317,936 7,343,430 1,294,611 0.870/o

PROGRAM EXPENSES

General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Community Development

Culture and Recreation

lnterest on Long-Term Debt
Water Services

1,408,014

2,084,507

547,234

625,700

271,099
216.917

1 ,569,1 54

1,875,209

614,421

398,745

340,347

88,273

(10.27%\

11 16%
(10.94o/o)

56.92%
(20.35%)
<100.00%

23.51o/o1 ,791 ,510 1,450,440
EXPENSES 5,153,471 1,791,510 4,886,149 1,450,440 9.60%

(DECREASE) rN NET
POStTtON 2 ,538 (473,574) 2,457,281 (155,829) (23.18Yo)

NNING NET POSITION 26.803,572 3,193,493 24,346,291 3,349,322 8.31%

PERIOD ADJUSTMENT** (1,451,045) (46 ,787) N/A

NG NET POSITION $ 27,594,065 $ 2,573,132 $ 26. 803,572 $ 3,193,493 0.570/o



Table 3
Net Gost of Governmental Activities

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

The financial performance of the City as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the City
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $11,460,036, which
reflects an increase from last year's ending fund balance of $739,598. The prior year fund balance
includes a prior period adjustment of $1 ,309,1Bl applicable to the funds with the double asterisk on table 4
below; the footnotes to the financial statements include further information on the prior period adjustment.

Table 4
Governmental Funds Balances and Activity

**lncludes prior period adjustments as explained in Note 23.
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Total Cost of Services
2019 2018

Net Cost of Services
20'19 2018

General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Community Development

Culture and Recreation

lnterest on Long-Term Debt

$ 1,408,014

2,084,507

547,234

625,700

271,099
2't6,917

$ 1,569,154

1,875,209

614,421

398,745
340,347

88,273

$$ 1,403,64'.1

1,901,670

(63e,2e1)

9,427

254,389
216,917

1,565,443

1,665,512

23,922
(321,266)

326,142

88,273

$ 5,153,471 $ 4,886,149 $ 3,146,753 _$_1,348,029_

nces

July 1.2018
Revenues &

Other Sources
Expenditures &

Other Uses June 30, 2019
**General Fund
Utility Users Tax Fund
**Fowler Public Financing Authority

(PFA) Debt Service Fund
Citizens' Option for Public Safety

(COPS) Fund
Recycling Grant
Gas Tax Fund
Street Projects Fund
Traffic Congestion Relief Fund
LTF Article 3 Fund
**LTF Article 8 Fund
Measure C Fund
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitaion

Act SB 1 Fund
**Com munity Development Block

Grant Fund
Debt Service 88-1 Fund
**Assessment City No.93-1 Fund
**Hospital lmprovement Fund
**Merced Street Fund
Debt Service Fire Station Fund
"*Assessment City No. 94-1 Fund
Water Well Maintenance Fund
Groundwater Fund
General Services Fund
Law Enforcement Fund
Fire Fund
AB 1600-Streets
Parks Fund
Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Storm Drain Fund
**Fire Construction Fund
Highway 99/Merced Street Fund

Total

510,352
480

38,555
13,O17
62,114
4,486

893,1 82
169,207

$ 8,439,121 $ 7,699,523

$ 2,915,475
829,433

2,423,906

1 88,1 63

$ 5,301,994
446,590

4,195,883
305,927

418,563

188,163
1,000

137,123
455,028

3,736
114,980

88,769

69,731
6,600

35,000
103,788

87,591
26,636
37,478

912,695

$ 4,021,586
970,096

2,163,027

4,000
16,040

(92,402)
7,038

28,669
251,136
922,440

57,054

795,743
82,457

(632,595)
(75,000)

(405,000)
11,670

$

30,586

32,405
365,748
714,572

23,761

795,743
22,823

(698,016)
(e0,000)

(470,000)
59,500

444,753
1 1 8,910
109,735
360,631
575,544
83,608

202,275
351,516
965,498

97,587
215,285

50,997

l_]!,720,199_

157,684

5,000
122,577
362,626

7,038

368
207,868

122,062

59,634
135,152
21,600

100,000
55,958

46,088
65,986

5,286
15,249
19,800

403,250
158,260
77,543

375,880
84,992
83,128

240,830
364,533

1,027,612
102,073
195,772
220,204

$ 11,460,036



General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Over the course of the year, the City revises its annual budget to reflect unexpected changes in revenues
and expenditures. The City did not revise its budget in the current year. There was no valiation between
original and final budget revenue and expenditures amount. A schedule of the City's original and final
budget amounts compared with actual revenues and expenses is provided in the supplemental section of
the audited financial report.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

GapitalAssets

At June 30, 2019, the
Table 5. More detailed
statements.

City had a
informatio

net investment of $24,589,291in capital assets, comprised as shown on
n about the City's capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial

Table 5
CapitalAssets

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the City had $8,172,17 in combined debt, as shown in Table 6. More detailed information about
the City's debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Table 6
Long-Term Debt

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the City was aware of several
circumstances that could affect its future financial health:

tr The continuing increases in premiums for health care insurance and worker's compensation could
have a significant effect on the future financial health of the City. Health care premiums are
predicted to continue to increase into the foreseeable future.

tr The budget assumptions used to prepare the budget for 2020 included a 2o/o cost of living increase
for salary steps.

E The unfunded CaIPERS liability will continue to increase significantly over the next few years and
will have a material impact on the City's financialsituation. ln 2019, the City voters approved a 1%
District Sales Tax to help offset the increased costs.

B

Business- Business-
TYPe

Activities

Total

Percentage

Change

Governmental
Activities

Type Governmental
ActivitiesActivities

2019 2019 2018 2018

$ '191 ,046

2019-2018
Land

Right of Ways

Buildings and lmprovements, Net
Machinery and Equipment, Net

lnfrastructures, Net

$ 1,132,979

7,447,189

1,724,088

162,806

8,449,458

1,537,903

$ 2s5,392 $ 1,043,531

7,447,189

1 ,810,095
188,371

9,795,764

177,253

12.460/o

0.00%

(4.760/0')

(12.55o/o)

(11.02o/o)

<100.00%

7,720

227,469

3,644,287

8,208
257,934

3,796,221
in Progress

CAPITAL POSITION $ 20,454,423 $ 4,134,868 $ 20,462,203 $ 4,253,409 (0.51%)

Governmental
Activities

Business-
TYPe

Activities
Governmental

Activities

Business-
TYPe

Activities
2018

$ 29,730
651 .741

1,600,900

2,623

Total
Percentage

Change

2019-2018
Compensated Absences

Net Pension Liability

Revenue Bonds

Certificates of Participation

Note Payable

Energy Efficiency Retrofit Loan

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT

2019

$ 116,355

3,106,827

2,020,000

50,000

54,000

34,509

2019 2018

$ $37,392
1,184,411

1,566,600

2,623

104,949

3,455,239

2,330,000

14.160/o

4.49o/o

(13.30olo)

0.98o/o

0.00%

(33.33%)

54,000

5'l 763

$ 5,381,691 $ 2,791,026 $ 5,995,951 $ 2,284,994 (1 .31o/a)



CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the
money it receives. lf you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information, contact:

Margarita Moreno
Finance Director
City of Fowler
128 South Fifth Street
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 201 9

ASSETS;
Cash and lnvestments
lnvestments Held by liscal agent:

Restricted
Receivables:

Accounts, Net
lntergovernmental
Community Loans

Advances to Enterprise Fund
Advances to Successor Agency
Deposits with others
Capital assets

Land
Right of Ways
Buildings and lmprovements, Net
Machinery and Equipment, Net
lnfrastructures, Net
Construction in Progress

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued lnterest Payable
Consumer Overpayments and Deposits
Compensated Absences

Noncurrent Liabilities :

Net Pension Liability
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred lnflows of Resources - Pensions

NET POSITION:
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:

State and Federal Programs
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Special Purpose

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Total

$ 9,866,685 $ r,094,040 $ 10,960,725

480,803 - 480,803

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

146,909

1,184,411
37,549

1,631,674

316,885
1,124,725

361,163
100,000
356,000
138,316

463,794
1,124,725

361 ,163
100,000
356,000
138,316

1,132,979
7,447,189
1,724,099

162,806
8,449,458
1,537,903

255,392

7,720
227,469

3,644,287

33,199,000

886,557 288,061

968,087
37,325
37,526

44,954

1 16,355

22,846
82,880
37,392

1,537 903
5,375,817 38,574,817

1,389,371
7,447,189
1,731,808

390,275
12,093,745

1,174,618

1 ,013,041
37,325
60,372
82,880

153,747

3,106,827
405,254

1,753,255

4,291,238
442,803

3,384,929

18,776,717 2,465,645

1,286,376
663,756

3,241,676
795,743

2,829,797 107,487

3,041,706 9,466 ,335

49,040 1 15,903

21,242,362

1,286,376
663,756

3,241 ,676
795,743

2,937,284
$@

6,424,629

66,863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

10
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Functions/Programs
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental Activities :

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Culture and Recreation
lnterest on Long-term Debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Water
Total Business-type Activities
Total Primary Government

1 ,408,014
2,084,507

547,234
625,700
271,099
216,917

4,373
176,632

1,010,728
5,000

Program Revenues

Expenses

$

5,153,471

1 ,791,510
1 ,791,510

$ 6,944881

Charges for
Services

$
6,205

175,797
611,273

16,710

809,985

1,318,102
1,318,102

$ 2J 28,087

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

$

1,196,733

$ 1 ,196,733

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property
Sales
Franchise
Utility
Other

Motor vehicle in-lieu taxes
Rental lncome
lnvestment lncome
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

$ (1,403,641)
(1,901,670)

639,291
(e,427)

(254,s8s)
(216,917\

$ (1

(1
,403,641)
,901,670)
639,291

(3,146,753)

(9,427)
(254,389)
(216,e17)

(3,146,753)

$ (473,408) (473,408)

(3,146,753)
(473,408) (473,408)
(473,408) (3,620,161)

1,092,841
1,832,996

326,099
448,706
595,841
632,549

12,483
185,677
259,459

1,640

1,474

(1,640)

1,092,841
1,832,996

326,099
448,706
595,841
632,549

12,483
187,151
259,459

5,388,291 (1 66) 5,388,125
2,241 ,539

26,803,572
(1,451,045)

$ 27,594,065

(473,574)
3,193,493

(146,787\

1,767,964
29,997,065
(1,597,832)

$ 2,573,132 $===!aJ€zJ
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CITY OF FOWLER
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 201 I

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:
Cash and lnvestments
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Accounts Receivable
Due lrom Other Agencies
Community Loans
Advances to Other Funds
Advances to Successor Agency
Deposits with Others

Total Assets and Other Debits

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Unavailable Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Special Purposes

Committed for:
Assigned for:

Special Purpose
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

General
Fund

$ 4,266,372

316,885
648,059

$ 5,369,632

$ 241,496
37,325
95,129

373,950

4,000

4,991,682
----zFe-5FEz

$ 5,369,632

Fire
Construction

Fund

$ 704,989

$__ rq4pgq

$ sog,zt z

509,217

195,772

195,772

$ 704,989

138,316

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$

Fowler Public
Financing Authority
Debt Service Fund

1 13,629
480,803

100,000
356,000

$ 1"050,432

$

1,050,432

1,050,432

$_____10q919a

Other
Governmental

Funds

$ 4,781,695

476,666
361,163

$:_5€194?A

$ 217,374

184,000
401,374

4,914,900

403,250

5,218,150

$:Eg1e{?4

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 9,966,695
480,803
316,995

1,124,725
361 ,163
100,000
356,000
138,316{iru

$ 968,087
37,325

279,129
1,294,541

6,065,104

403,250
4,991,682

11,460,036

$ 12,744,577
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CITY OF FOWLER
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 201 I

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported in the funds.
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Payables for notes which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds.
Revenue receivables unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds.
The City's net pension liability and the related DROs & DRls are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities - Statement of Net Position

$ t t,460,036

20,454,423
(2,020,000)

(37,526)
(138,50e)
(1 16,355)
279,129

(2,287,133\

$___?2,594,999_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Revenue:
Taxes
License and Permits
Fines and Penalties
Revenue from Use of Money and Property
Charges for Service
lntergovernmental Revenue
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Culture and Recreation
CapitalOutlay
Debt Service

Principal
lnterest
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers ln
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Fund Balances - Ending

$

General
Fund

3,330,374
1,266,169

10,747
37,212

524,399
191,696
204,924

5,565,421

Fire
Construction

Fund

912,695

(912,6e5)

893,182

893,182

(1e,s13)

197,260
18,025

$_______195-JlZ

$

1,139,589
1,831,085

31 1,618
561,421
294,639

57,628 912,695

4,195,980

1,369,441

(306,830)
(306,830)

1,062,61 1

3,397,994
535,187

$ 4Be5$82

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Fowler Public
Financing Authority
Debt Service Fund

$ 135,152

157,684

292,836

310,000
212,851
529,894

(237,058)

121,600

121,600

(1 15,458)

785,684
380,206

$ 1P50,432

Other
Governmental

Funds

$ 59,634

3,264
46,088

1 ,196,997

1,305,983

190,231
149,513
37,958

456,865

17,254
238

852,059

453,924

(188,042)

5,030,429
375,763

$ 5218J 50

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 3,525,160
1 ,266,169

10,747
198,160
570,487

1,388,693
204,824

7,1 64,240

,0437 1 ,146,632
1,831,085

501,849
710,934
332,597

1,427,188

,93671

327,254
213,089

6,490,628

673,612

1 ,086,718
(1,020,732)

65,996

739,598

9,411,257
1 ,309,181

$_____l_1108J3€_

(713,902)
(641,e66)
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CITY OF FOWLER
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
("SOA) are different because:

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA.
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds.
Transfers of assets decrease net position in the SOA but not in the funds.
Revenues in the SOA not providing current linancial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA.
Repayment of loan principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA.
(lncrease) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of period to end ol period.
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earned in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds
Proceeds of notes do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds.
Pension expense adjustments relating to GASB 68 are recorded in the SOA but not in the funds.

Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities

$ 739,598

1,427,187
(383,225)

(64,346)
279,129
310,000

17,254
(3,828)

(11,406)
(50,000)
(18,825)

$ 2,241,539

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

18



CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUND
JUNE 30, 201 9

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and lnvestments
Accounts Receivable, Net

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Fixed Assets:

Land
Buildings and lmprovements, Net
Machinery and Equipment, Net
lnfrastructures, Net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows ol Resources - Pension

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
lnterest Payable
Consumer Overpayments and Deposits
Compensated Absences

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net Pension Liability
Due in one year
Due in more than one year

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred lnflows oi Resources - Pension

NET POSITION:
lnvestment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted (Deficit)

TotalNet Position

Water
Fund

$ 1,094,040
146,909

1,240,949

255,392
7,720

227,469
3,644,287
4,134,868

5,375,817

288,061

44,954
22,846
82,880
37,392

188,072

1,184,411
37,549

1,631,674
2,853,634

3,041 706

49,040

4,134,969
(1,561,736)

$_____?JrcJEa

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel costs
Materials and Supplies
Contract Services
Utilities
lnsurance
Repairs and Maintenance
Rent and leases
Depreciation
Bad Debt Expense
Other

Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
lnterest Revenue
lnterest Expense

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
lncome before Translers

lnterfund Operating Translers ln
lnterfund Operating Transfers Out

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position - Beginning

Prior Period Adjustment
Total Net Position - Ending

Water
Fund

$ t ,318,102

1,066,640
119,712
64,550

182,973
25,172
57,562
9,600

182,888
(6,625)
14,541

1,717 013

(398,e1 1)

1,474
(74,497)
(73,023)

(471,934)

64,346
(65,e86)

(473,574)

3,193,493

(146,787)
$::=3,5ZgJ!a

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201 9

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Other Operating Cash Receipts (Payments)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Transfers From (To) Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal and lnterest Paid
Payment to Acquire Fixed Assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) lor Capital & Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities:
lnterest lncome

Net Cash Provided (Used) for lnvesting Activities

Net lncrease (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating lncome to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating lncome (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (lncrease) in Receivables
Decrease (lncrease) in lnventory
lncrease (Decrease) NPL & related DRO & DRI
lncrease (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
lncrease (Decrease) in lnterest Payable
Decrease (lncrease) in Customer Deposits
lncrease (Decrease) in Compensated Absences

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Water
Fund

$ 1,295,272
402,558
556,344

979
335,391

(1,640)
(1,640)

(133,797)
(64,346)

(198,143)

1,474
1,474

137,082
956,958

$__l,0g4q4q_

$ (398,91 1)

182,888

(23,6s4)
58,442

502,634
6,485

(s7e)
824

7,662
734,302

--355FeT
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS:
Cash and lnvestments
Total Current Assets

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due in more than one year

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

Redevelopment
Successor Agency

Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

$ sz,szs
--------"-s2575

3,600
9,907

13,507

356,000
356,000

369,507

(271,932)

$===_____l?4€ga

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

ADDITIONS:
Tax Revenue

TotalAdditions

DEDUCTIONS:
Personnel Costs
Professional Services
Debt Service - lnterest

Total Deductions

Change in Fiduciary Net Position

Net Position-Beginning of the Year
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position-End ol the Year

Redevelopment
Successor Agency
Private-Purpose

Trust Fund

109,232
109,232

10,498
9,784

38,250
58,532

50,700

(156,838)
(165,794)

$::J4$ga

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. GeneralStatement

The City of Fowler, California was incorporated June 15, 1908. The City is a general law city and
as such draws its authority from the constitution and laws of the State of California. The City has a
council/manager form of government and is governed by a five member elected council. The City
Manager is appointed by the City Council. The City provides the following services: police and fire
protection, street construction and maintenance, public improvements, planning and zoning,
recreation, and general administrative services. The City also operates the water utility enterprise.

The accounting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the accompanying basic
financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted principles for local
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB), the American lnstitute of Certified Public accountants in the publication entitled
Audits of State and Local Governmental Units.

2. Reportinq Entitv

The City's financial reporting entity comprises the following

Primary Government: City of Fowler

Blended Component Units: Fowler Public Financing Authority

ln determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and includes all component units of which the
City appointed a voting majority of the units' board; the City is either able to impose its will on the
unit or a financial benefit or burden relationship exists.

Blended Component U nits

Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria
described above and whose governing body is the same of substantially the same as the City
Council or the component unit provides services entirely to the City. These component units' funds
are blended into those of the City's by appropriate activity type to compose the primary government
presentation.

Discretelv Prese nted Component U nits

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit
criteria described above but do not meet the criteria for blending. Currently, the City has no
discretely presented component units.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Component
Unit Brief Descriot ion/lnclusion Criteria Reoortino

Fowler Public
Financing Authority

The Fowler Public Financing Authority is a joint
exercise of powers agency duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of
California. The Authority's specific and primary
purpose is to provide financial assistance to the
City of Fowler by acquiring qualified obligations
from the City which were issued for the
acquisition, construction, and improvement of
public facilities and property. The current City
Council serves as entire governing body
(Trustees). Any issuance of debt would
require a twothirds approvalof the City Council.

Debt Service Fund

3. Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accountino

a. Change in Accountinq Policies

The City has adopted accounting policies compliant with new pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) that are effective for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019. Those newly implemented pronouncements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obliqations

This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement
obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a
tangible capital asset. A government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement
activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance
in this Statement.

This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a
liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement requires
that recognition occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. The
determination of when the liability is incurred should be based on the occurrence of external
laws, regulations, contracts, or court judgements, together with the occurrence of an internal
event that obligates a government to perform asset retirement activities. Laws and regulations
may require governments to take specific actions to retire certain tangible capital assets at the
end of the useful lives of those capital assets, such as decommissioning nuclear reactors and
dismantling and removing sewage treatment plants. Other obligations to retire tangible capital
assets may arise from contracts or court judgements. lnternal obligating events include the
occurrence of contamination, placing into operation a tangible capital asset that is required to
be retired, abandoning a tangible capital asset before it is placed into operation, or acquiring a
tangible capital asset that has an existing ARO.

The City has implemented the provisions of this Statement as of June 30, 2019.

GASB Statement No. 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, includino Direct Borrowinqs
and Direct Placements

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes
to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct
placements. lt also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a
liability that arises from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used
in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the
contractual obligation is established.

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in
notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for
the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of default with
finance-related consequences, significant termination events with finance-related
consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses.

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and
additional information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately
from other debt.

The City has implemented the provisions of the Statement as of June 30, 2019

b. Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the City, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business{ype activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific program. The City does not allocate indirect expenses on the statement of activities.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Separate statements are presented for governmental and proprietary activities.
These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements;
all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds in on the sources, uses and balance of
current financial resources.

The City has presented the following major governmentalfunds:

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial
resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not
restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund.
General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid
through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

The Fire Construction Fund is used to account separately for construction costs for the new fire
station.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

The Fowler Public Financing Authority (PFA) Debt Service Fund accounts for PFA debt.

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The following special revenue funds
are utilized by the City:

. The Recycling Grant Fund is use to account separately from state revenues used for recycling
initiatives of the City.

. The Gas Tax Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for street and road
purposes.

. The Street Projects Fund is used to account separately for federal and state revenues used for
local street projects.

. The Traffic Congestion Relief Fund is used to account separately for state grant revenues
used for transportation projects that improve traffic mobility and relieve congestion, connect
transportation systems, and provide for better goods movement.

. The LTF Article 3 Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for local
pedestrian and bicycle path projects.

. LTF Article 8 Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for local streets and
roads projects.

. The Measure C Fund is used to account separately for County revenues used for roads and
transportation projects in Fresno County.

. The Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Act SBI Fund is used to account separately for state
revenues used for transportation projects.

. The Community Development Block Grant Fund is used to account separately for state grant
funding to assist in development activities.

Debt Seruice Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general-long term debt principal, interest, and related costs. The following debt service funds
are maintained by the City:

. The Debt Service 88-1 Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
repayment of, City bonds, interest and related costs.

. The Debt Service Fire Station Fund is used to account separately for debt service for the new
fire station.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and/or construction of all major
governmental general fixed assets. The City maintains the following capital projects funds:

o The Water Well Maintenance Fund is used to account separately for water well maintenance
fees collected by the City through the building permit system as well as to track the expenses
incurred by the City to maintain its water wells.

. The Groundwater Fund is used to account for fees paid to the Consolidated lrrigation District
(District) to be placed into a groundwater management and replenishment fund for purposes of
implementing groundwater replenishment methodologies to benefit the City and District.

. The General Services Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for equipment,
construction and maintenance of general City assets.

r The Law Enforcement Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for the purchase of
vehicles and equipment.

r The Fire Department Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for the purchase of
vehicles and equipment.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

. The AB 1600-Streets Fund is used to account for development impact fees to be used to
reduce the impact of costs related to street maintenance and improvements.

. The Parks Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for equipment, construction
and maintenance of park facilities.

. The Water Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for equipment, construction
and maintenance of public works facilities.

. The Sewer Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for infrastructure construction
and improvement.

. The Storm Drain Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for construction and
maintenance of City infrastructure.

. The Highway 99/Merced Street Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for street
and highway maintenance and construction.

ln addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Proprietary Fund - Water Fund: This fund accounts for financial activity of the water utility system.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for the proprietary funds include the costs of personal and contractual services, supplies
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, because their
assets are held in a trustee or agent and are, therefore, not available to support City programs,
these finds are not included in the government-wide financial statements. The Private-Purpose
Trust Fund is used to account for the Assets of the former City of Fowler Redevelopment Agency
during the wind down period.

c. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accountinq

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-
current) are included on the statement of net position and the operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, including unbilled water services which are
accrued. Expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual;
i.e., when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable" means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers property
taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. A one-year availability period
is used for recognition of all other Governmental Fund revenues. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, except for interest
payable accrued at the debt issuance date for which cash is received with the debt proceeds, as
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and arbitrage are recorded only when
payment has matured and will be payable shortly after year-end.
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The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, charges for
service, interest income and intergovernmental revenues. Sales taxes collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the government are also recognized as revenue. All other
governmental fund revenues are recognized when received, as they are deemed immaterial.

4. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations
for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts,
and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments
are paid. All encumbrances are liquidated as of June 30.

5. Budqets and Budqetary Accountino

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

a. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for all
Governmental Fund types and Proprietary Fund types. These budgets are adopted iln a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

b. The City Council approves the line item budget appropriations and also approves all additions or
transfers of budgeted amounts.

c. Unused appropriations for all of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year.

d. The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts revised
during the year.

6. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considered all highly liquid investments with
a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. All cash and
investments of the proprietary funds are pooled with the City's pooled cash and investments.

b. Property Taxes

Property taxes are assessed, collected, and allocated by Fresno County throughout the fiscal year
according to the following property tax calendar:

Lien Date
Levy Date
Due Dates
Delinquent Dates

January 1st

July 1st to June 30th
November 1sl, 1st installment, February 1sl, 2nd installment
December 1Oth, 1st installment, April 1Oth,2nd installment

c. Receivable and Pavable Balances

The City has provided detail of the receivable balances in Note 10. The City believes that sufficient
detail of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial statements to avoid the
obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided which
disaggregates those balances.

Proprietary fund receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. All
customers are billed monthly. The estimated value of services provided, but unbilled at year-end
has been included in the accompanying financialstatements.
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d. Loans Receivable

For the purpose of the Fund Financial Statements, Special Revenue Fund expenditures relating
to long{erm loans arising from loan subsidy programs are recorded as Community Loans
Receivable.

e. lnventorv and Prqpaid Expenditures

lnventory items are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Records are not
maintained of inventory and supplies on hand.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and recorded
as prepaid items.

f. CapitalAssets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets' lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives

Buildings
lmprovements
Machinery and Equipment
lnfrastructure

10 - 50 Years
5 - 10 Years
3 - 25 Years

20 - 40 Years

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34
which requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments' basic financial
statements. ln accordance with Statement No. 34, the City has included the value of all
infrastructure into the June 30, 2019 basic financialstatements.

The City defines infrastructure as capital assets that are stationary and have expected useful lives
significantly in excess of most capital assets. The assets include the street system, water
purification and distribution system, sewer collection and treatment system, park and recreation
improvement, storm water conveyance system, and buildings combined with the site amenities
such as parking and landscaped areas used by the City in the conduct of its business.

g. Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned or unused
vacation leave. Vacation is accumulated at 6-213 hours per month for full{ime regular employees
with less than 5 years' service to a maximum of 13-113 hours per month for full{ime regular
employees with over 10 years of service. Maximum vacation leave accumulated may not exceed
320 hours at any one time. Vacation leave may be taken as determined by the employee's
Department Head, City Manager, or Council (in case of Department Heads) with due consideration
for the employee's wishes and needs of the service provided. At June 30, 2019, the amount of
accrued vacation pay was $116,355 for the Governmental Activities, and $37,392 for the
Business-Type Activities.
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h. Unearned revenue

Cash received for federal and state projects and programs is recognized as revenue to the extent
that qualified expenditures have been incurred. Unearned revenue is recorded to the extent cash
received on specific projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures.

i. lnterfund Activitv

lnterfund activity results from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds.
Loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to
elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates,
are treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund
incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefitting fund and reduces its related cost as a
reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers ln and Transfers
Out are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of
activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single
"lnternal Balances" line of the government-wide statement of net position.

j. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources is a consumption of net assets or position that is applicable to a
future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources is an acquisition of net assets or net position
that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources are recorded in accordance with GASB Statement numbers 63 and 65.

k. Lonq-TermLiabilities

ln the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, businesstype activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of
the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as bond discounts
and amortized over the term of the related debt.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported
as debt service expenditures. Discounts withheld from the debt proceeds are reported as other
financing uses.

Fund Balances

Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based
primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Governmental fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or
unassigned. Following are descriptions of fund classifications used by the City:

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of the
resources either by an external party or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by a formal action of the Board, the City's highest level of decision-making
authority. This formal action is the majority vote of the City's Governing Board.
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Assrgtned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for a
specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. For governmental funds, other than the
general fund, this is the residual amount within the fund that is not restricted or committed.
Assignments of fund balance are created by the City Manager and Finance Director pursuant to
authorization established by Board Policy.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund should be
the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. ln other governmental
funds, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
(committed, assigned, or unassigned) resources are available, it is the City's general policy to use
restricted resources first. When expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which
unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) resources are available, and amount in any of
these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the City's general policy to spend committed
resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.

m. Net Position

lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This amount consists of capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments,

Unrestricted Net Position - This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition of "invested
in capital assets, net of related debt" or "restricted net position."

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position
are available, the City's policy is to apply restricted net position first.

n. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City
of Fowler's California Public Retirement System (CaIPERS) Plan (Plan)and additions to/deductions
from the Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. lnvestments
are reported at fair value. CaIPERS audited financial statements are publicly available reports that
can be obtained at CaIPERS'website under Forms and Publications.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined time frames. For this report, the following time frames are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2017

Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2018

Measurement Period (MP)
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o. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

7. Compliance and Accounta.bility

a. Finance-Related Leqal and Contractual Provisions

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,"
violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with
actions taken to address such violations:

Violation
None reported

Action Taken
Not applicable

b. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Posjtion of lndividual Funds

Following are funds that have deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along
with remarks which address such deficits:

Fund Name
Deficit

Amount Remarks
Redevelopment Successor
Agency Private-Purpose Trust

The Street Projects Fund

The Assessment District 93-1
Fund

The Hospital lmprovement Fund $

The Merced Street Fund

$ (271,932) Deficit fund balance will be reduced with the future
receipt of tax increment revenues.

$ (92,402) Deficit fund balance will be reduced by transferring
in available cash from another fund.

$ (632,595) Deficit fund balance will be reduced by transferring
in available cash from another fund.

(75,000) Deficit fund balance will be reduced by transferring
in available cash from another fund.

$ (405,000) Deficit fund balance will be reduced by transferring
in available cash from another fund.

B. Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations

As of June 30, 2019, expenditures exceeded appropriations in individual funds as follows:

Appropriations Cateqorv

General Fund:
General Government
Community Development

Excess
Expenditures

$ 533
$282,492

The City exceeded budgeted expenditures in the General Fund, Community Development due to
additional expenditures incurred for street projects. The excess expenditures in the General Fund,
General Government are not significant.
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9. Cash and lnvestments

Summarv of Cash and lnvestments

Cash and lnvestments at June 30, 2019 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Statement of Net Position:
Governmental Activities:

Cash and lnvestments $ 9,866,685
Restricted Cash with a fiscal agenVtrustee 480,803

Business Type Activities:
Cash and lnvestments 1,094,040

Fiduciary Funds:
Cash and lnvestments 97,576

_$_l_1_,599-1_ql

Cash and investments as of June 30,2019 consist of the following

Deposits with financial institutions
Cash on hand
lnvestments
Cash with a fiscal agenVtrustee

$ 10,268,126
700

789,475
480,803

$ 1 1.539.104

lnvestment Authorized by the California qovernment Code and the Citv's lnvestment Policv

The investment policy of the City is consistent with guidelines set forth under State of California
Government Code Section 53602 and serves to maximize investment income consistent with safe and
prudent investment practices. All surplus funds are managed by the Finance Director in compliance
with the Statement of lnvestment Policy adopted by the City Council which delegates to the Finance
Director the authority to invest city funds and to deposit securities.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds. lnterest income earned on
pooled cash and investments is allocated monthly to the various funds based on the month-end cash
and investment balances.

(a) Collateral for Deposits

The City of Fowler maintains a cash investment pool that is available for all funds. Each fund type
balance in the pool is reflected on the statement of net position as cash and investments. The
carrying amount of the City's cash deposits was $10,170,550 at June 30,2019 (excludes cash
deposits of fiduciary fund). The general bank balance at June 30,2019 was $10,332,066
(excludes cash in bank of fiduciary fund) which was either insured or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institutions in the City's name as discussed below.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to
secure the City's cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that
collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such
collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered
to be held in the City's name. The market value of the pledged securities must equal at least 1 10%
of a city's deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value ol 150o/o of a city's total deposits.

(b) LocalAqencv lnvestment Fund (LAIF)

The City participates in an external investment pool, as defined by GASB Statement No. 31, by
way of its funds on deposit in the LAIF managed by the State of California. These funds are pooled
with those of other agencies in the State and invested in accordance with state guidelines.
Substantially all information required for the GASB Statement No. 31 disclosure was unavailable
at the time these financial statements were prepared. The balance of $789,475 approximates the
fair value. lnvestment gains and losses are shared proportionately by all members of LAIF and
paid quarterly to each member. lnvestment in LAIF is not subject to risk categorization.
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Negotiable certificates of deposit
Bankers' acceptances
Commercialpaper

Repurchase agreements
Reverse repurchase ag reements

lnvestments authorized bv Debt Aqreement

The balance of $480,803 includes the bond issue proceeds trust accounts which consist of
proceeds from bonds which are unspent or reserved. These funds are required to be held by
outside fiscal agents under the provisions of the bond agreements. The California Government
Code provides these monies in the absence of specific statutory provision governing the issuance
of the certificates, may be invested in accordance with ordinance, resolutions, or indentures
specifying the types of investments the fiscal agent may make. These investments are generally
more restrictive than the City's investment policy, and at no time have additional investments not
permitted by the City's investment policy been authorized.

Under provisions of the City's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the
California Government Code, the City may invest in the following types of investments:

Securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies Local agency investment fund deposits (state
pool)

Certificates of deposit (or time deposits) placed with Passbook savings account demand deposits
commercial banks and/or savings & loan companies Small business administration loan.

All of the City's investment activities are within state statutes and the City's investment policy.
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the City did not utilize investment types different from those
categorized below. A summary of investment securities by category as of June 30, 2019 is as
follows:

Fair Value

Money Market Cash With FiscalAgent $4S0;803

The fair value of investments held in the City Treasury grouped by maturity at June 30, 2019, is as
shown below:

Maturitv

Current to one year $480.803

Disclosures Relatinq to lnterest Rate Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity
of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

Disclosures Relatinq to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. The City invests solely in
the Local Agency lnvestment Fund. All other assets are cash equivalents held in finanbial
institution savings or checking accounts.
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Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government
Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provisions for deposits:
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state
or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the totalamount
deposited by the public agencies.

None of the City's deposits that were in excess of federal depository insurance limits with financial
institutions were held in uncollateralized accounts.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.9., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California
Government code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments,
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial
credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect investment in securities through the use
of mutualfunds or government investment pools.

lnvestment in State lnvestment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the LAIF that is regulated by the California Government Code
under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City's
investments in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in
relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on
the account records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Fair Value Measurements

The City categorizes the fair value measurements with the fair value measurements within the fair
value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based
on the relative inputs used to measure the fair value of the investments. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1

measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1: lnputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets in
active markets that they City has the ability to access.

Level 2: lnputs to the valuation methodology include:

. Quoted prices for similar assets in active markets'. Quoted irices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets;. lnputs that are derived principally from on corroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means.

Level 3: lnputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the City's own assumptions about the inputs
market participants would use in pricing the asset (including assumptions about risk).
Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances and include the City's own data.
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lnvestments Not Subject to Fair Value Hierarchy
California Local Agency lnvestment Fund

Held with FiscalAgent:
Money Market Mutual Funds

Total lnvestment Portfolio

1 0. Accounts Receivable

Receivable balance as of June 30, 2019, consist of the following:

Receivable
Governmental Funds -

Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Agencies

Enterprise Fund -
Accounts Receivable

The asset's level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The determination of
what constitutes observable requires judgement by the City's management. City
management considers observable data to be the market data, which is readily available,
regularly distributed or updated, reliable, and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
multiple independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant markets.

The categorization of an investment within the hierarchy is based upon the relative
observability of the inputs to its fair value measurement and does not necessarily
correspond to City Management's perceived risk of that investment. The methods
described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair values. The use of ditferent methodologies or assumptions
to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

When available, quoted prices are used to determine fair value. V/hen quoted prices in
active markets are available, investments are classified within Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy. When quoted prices in active markets are not available, fair values are based
on evaluated prices received by City's asset manager from a third-party service provider.

The City has no investments subject to categorization.

1 1. lnterfund Balances and Activities

a. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfer in to and out from other funds at June 30,2019, consisted

Transfer Out Transfer ln Amount

General Fund Hospital lmprovement Fund $ 21,600

$ 789,475

480,803

$ 1.270.278

AI nce Net

$ 316,885
1,124,725

of the following:

Purpose

To fund the 1993 Senior Center Sublease local
obligation payments.

Contribution for new fire station construction

To fund Merced Street improvement local
obligation payment.

To transfer CID fees.

To account for fire station project reserve
proceeds in proper fund.

To account for USDA COP proceeds in proper
fund.

Contribution for new fire station construction
costs.

Utility users Tax Fund

Gas Tax Fund

Water Fund - Enterprise

Fire Department Fund

Debt Service Fire Station
Fund

Fire Department Fund

Fire Construction Fund

Merced Street Fund

Ground Water Fund

Debt Service Fire Station Fund

Fire Construction Fund

Fire Construction Fund

$ 316,885 $
1,124,725

285,230

100,000

65,986

5,950

103,550

504,402

$ 178,537 $ (31,628) $ 146,909
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12. CapitalAssets

ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported all capital assets including
infrastructure additions as of the beginning of the fiscal year in the government-wide statement of net
position. The City elected to use the basic approach whereby accumulated depreciation and
depreciation expense have been recorded. The following table presents summary information on
capital assets:

Beginning Balance

July 1, 2018

Prior Period

Adjustment lncreases

Ending Balance

Decreases June 30, 2019

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Right of ways

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Gapital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructures

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructures

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructures

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructures

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Total capital assets

1,043,531 $ 1s3,794 $

7,447,189

177 ,253 (1,500) 1,362,1s0

$ 64,346 $ 1,132,979

- 7,447,189

- 1,537,903

$

8,667,973 152,294 1,362,150 64,346 10,118,071

2,864,159

2,118,592

15,396, 1 07

65,037

2,864, 159

2,183,629

15,396,107

20,378,858 65,037 20,443,895

1,054,064

1,930,221

5,600,343

86,007

90,602

206,616

1 ,140,071

2,020,823

6,946,6491 ,1 39,690

8,584,628 1 ,1 39,690 383,225 1 0,'t 07,543

11,794,230 (1,139,690) (318,188) 10,336,352

20,462,203 (987,396) 1,043,962 64,346 20,454,423

191,046 64,346 255,392

191,046 64,346 255,392

12,186

480,718

6,077,395

12,186

480,718

6,077,395

6,570,299 6,570,299

3,978

222,784

2,281,172

488

30,465

151,936

4,466

253,249

2,433,108

2,507,934 182,889 2,690,823

4,062,365 (1 82,889) 3,879,476

4,253,411 (1 18,s43) 4,134,868

$ 24,715,614 $ (987,396) $ 925,419 $ 64,346 $ 24,589,291
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General government
Public safety
Public works
Parks and recreation
Total

Advances to Water Fund
Advances to Successor Agency

Future commitments to the City follow:

Year Ended
June 30

For the year ended June 30, 2019, depreciation expense on capital assets was charged to the
governmental functions as follows:

$ 237,218
28,526

103,770
13,711

_$_3!320_

13. Community Loans Receiv?ble

As part of the City's development plan, the City of Fowler applied for and received Community
Development Block Grants (CDBG) from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
These grants are used to provide loan funding for small businesses in the City of Fowler. The purpose
is to develop growth and create jobs in the community of Fowler. The loans are made at reasonable
rates. The total loans receivable forthe CDBG community loans is $361,163 and is presented on the
City's financial statements as noted below.

2o/o loan to Dale Brisco, lnc. due in monthly installments of $644
including principal and interest. $ 5,933 *

2o/o loan to La Quinta due in monthly installments of $2,583
including principal and interest. 286,757 *

No interest loan to Nouveau Hair Salon due in monthly installments
of $179 300

No interest loan to Espana & Associates due in monthly installments
of$119 4,979

No interest loan to Borga Steel Buildings and Components due in
monthly installments of $833.

Total Community Loans Receivable

63,294

361 ,1 63

* Loans in arrears as of June 30, 2019

14. Advances Receivable

The City advanced funds in order to fund improvements within the City of Fowler. The funds noted
below are responsible for repayment of advances at June 30, 2019:

$ 100,000
356,000

l_l!6,00a_

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2026

$ 115,650
114,450
113,600
112,050
109,800

565,550
lnterest
Total

(1 .550)
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15. Lonq-Term Oblisations

a. Lonq-Term Obliqation Activity

Longterm obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities
obligations for the period ended June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Changes in long-term

Governmental activities:
Compensated Absences
Revenue bonds
Land Purchase Note
Energy Efficiency Retrofit Loan
2018 Certificate of Participation

Business{ype activities:
Compensated Absences
State of California:

Certificates of participation
Revenue Bond
Department of Water
Resources note

Trust Activities:
Successor Agency - Revenue
Bond

Total

Beginning Balance Prior Period
July 1,2018 Adjustment

$

Ending Balance
lncreases Decreases June 30,2019

$ 11,404 $

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

2,006,714

29,730

1,600,900
125,000

2,623re
409,000

_q_1,1r3,e6?_

534,000 310,000

17,254

(125,000) 7,662 34,300

(409,000)

$ 69,066

37,392

1,566,600

$ 3,881,479 $ 596,550

2,623 1,749
1,606,615 74,941

104,951 $
'1,796,000

54,000
51,763

$ 116,35s
2,020,000

54,000
34,509

$ 1 16,355
315,000

54,000
17,254

534,000 61,404 327,254 2,274,864 521,609

7,662 37,392

35,80034,300
(125,000)

$

b. Revenue Bonds

The Fowler Public Financing Authority issued Refunding Revenue Bonds in the amount of
$4,435,000 in August 2012.The proceeds from the bonds were used to refund the $4,190,000
principal amount outstanding on the 1993 and 1994 Revenue Bonds and pay the costs of issuance
of the bonds. The Bonds mature through September 2027 with interest ranging from2o/o to 5.10%
payable semi-annually on March 15 and September 15.

The outstanding revenue bonds of the City of Fowler at June 30,2019, are as follows:

Date of
lssue

lnterest

Rate%

Maturity

Date

Original

lssue

Outstanding

July 1,2018

lssued Redeemed

Current Current

Year Year

Outstanding

June 30, 2019

2010 2.00-5.10 2023 $ 4,435,000 $2,330,000 $ $ 310,000 $ 2,020,000

The annual requirements to amortize revenue bonds outstanding as of June30, 2019, are as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Principal lnterest Total

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

Total

$ 315,000
330,000
355,000
375,000
645,900

$ 2,020,000

$ 94,106
78,375
61,073
42,458
16,448

$ 409,106
408,375
416,073
417,458
661,448
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c. Land Purchase Note

On February 24,2010, the City purchased 8 acres of land located at South and Sunnyside
for a price of $432,000 payable in 8 annual installments of $54,000 at no interest. Pay
commence January 6,2011, and annually thereafter on or before January 6th until paid in
of June 30,2019, the outstanding balance is $54,000.

d. Enerov Efficiencv Retrofil l=oan

ln October 2014, the City received a loan of $112,153 from Pacific Gas & Electric to complete
gnergy conservation measures related to street lighting. The loan call for monthly payments of
$1,438 until April 2021 and bears no interest. Future p-ayments are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30

Avenues
ments to
full. As

2020
2021

Total

$ 17,254
17,255

$ 34.509

e. 2018 Certificates of Participation

On December 18,2018, the City was awarded a loan from the United States Department of
Agriculture, Rural DevelopmentDivision,foratotal of $1,316,950. Thepurposeof theloanisfor
the construction of a Fire Station for the City of Fowler. As of June 30, 2019, the City has drawn
$50,000 at a stated interest rate of not more lhan 2.375% per annum. Principal payrirents will be
due on September 1 of each year. lnterest is due semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 of
each year.

The annual requirements to amortize $50,000 in funds drawn to date and the balance to yet be
disbursed of the 2018 certificates of participation outstanding as of June 30, 2019, are as foilows:

Year Ended
30 Principal lnterest TotalJ

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2029
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044
2045-2049
2050-2054
2055-2059
2060-2064
2065-2069
Total

$ 19,000
20,000
20,000
21,000
22,000

1 18,000
133,000
150,000
168,000
190,000
215,000
240,950

$ 23,689 $
31,281
31,314
30,233
29,728

140,650
125,661
108,830
89,955
68,806
44,718
17,669

42,689
51,281
51,314
51,233
51,728

258,650
258,661
258,830
257,955
258,806
259,718
258,619

_L131_0-950_ -9JA?*L34_ $ 2.059.484
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Certificates of Participation

On September 2, 2004, the City was awarded a loan from the United States Department of
Agriculture, Rural Development Division, for a total of $1,935,000. The purpose of the loan is for
water system improvements. As of June 30, 2019, the City has drawn $1,566,600 at a stated
interest rate of not more lhan 4.375% per annum. Principal payinents will be due on September
15 of each year. lnterest is due semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 of each year.

The annual requirements to amortize certificates of participation outstanding as of June 30, 2019,
are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Principal lnterest Total

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

2025-2030
2030-2034
2035-2039
2040-2044

Total

$ 35,800
37,300
38,900
40,700
42,400

241,700
299,500
370,900

$ 67,755 $
66,157
64,490
62,748
60,931

274,490
215,502
142,452

103,555
103,457
103,390
103,448
103,331
516,1 90
515,002
513,352

459 400 51 962 511 362
$ 1,566,600 $ 1,006,487 $ 2,573,087

$2020
2021

Total

16. Commitments Under Noncapitalized Leases

a. Office Equipment

g. State of California Department of Water Resources Note

The State of California Department of Water Resources note is due in annual installments based
upon a changing percentage of the original principal amount. The interest for the first five years
of the note was deferred and is being paid in equal annual installments over the remaining life of
the note.

The annual requirements to amortize the longterm notes outstanding as of June 30,2019 are as
follows:

June 30 Principal lnterest Total

$ 2623'$

$ 1,749
874

T 2s23

$

1,749
874

$

The City has entered into operating leases for a postage meter and a copier with lease terms in
excess of one year. These agreements contain no purchase options. The agreements contain a
termination clause providing for cancellation after a specified number of days' written notice to
lessors, but is unlikely that the City will cancel the agreement prior to the expiration date. Future
minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

Year Ended Lease
lqne 30 Pavments

2020
2021
2022
2023

Total

11,855
10,079
6,525
4,350

$ 32.809

The City will receive no sublease rental revenues nor pay any contingent rentals for the postage
meters or copier.

The City made lease payments of $10,689 for this equipment during the year ended June 30, 2019.
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17. Detail of Fund Balqnce Classificationg

Details of assigned Fund Balances are as follows:
Other

Governmental
Funds

Assigned for:
Water Well Maintenance $ 403,250

18. Pension Plans

a. General lnformation About the Pension Plan (CaIPERS)

1. Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public
Agency Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public
Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit
tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and fire) and miscellaneous risk pool (all other.) Plan
assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous
pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans
under GASB Statement No. 68. lndividual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in
the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The City of Fowler's (City) sponsors four rate plans (two
miscellaneous and two safety.) Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State
statue and City resolution. CaIPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full
description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CaIPERS website.

2. Benefits Provided

CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on year of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit
is one the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the Plan are applied as
specified by the Public Employees' Retirement Law.

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at ending June 30, 2019, are summarized as
follows:

Miscellaneous

1st Tier PEPRA
Prior to

January 1,2013
On or after

Januarv 1 ,2013Hire Date
Benefit Formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a o/o of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates

Hire Date
Benefit Formula
Benefit vesting schedule
Benefit payments
Retirement age
Monthly benefits, as a o/o of eligible compensation
Required employee contribution rates
Required employer contribution rates
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2.7o/o at 55
5 years service
monthly for life

50-55
2.0Vo lo 2.7o/o

8.00%
12.212%

2% at62
5 years service
monthly for life

52-67
1.0o/o to 2.5%

6.25o/o

6.8420k

Safety
1st Tier PEPRA
Prior to

January 1,2013
On or after

January 1.2013
3% at 55

5 years of service
monthly for life

50-55
2.4o/o to 3.0Vo

9o/o

18.677%

2.7o/o al57
5 years of service

monthly for life
50-57

2.OVo lo 2.70/o

12%
12.141%
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Beginning of fiscal year 2016, CaIPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a
percentage of payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar
amount for contributions toward the unfunded liability. The dollar amounts are billed on a
monthly basis. The City's required contribution for the unfunded liability was $286,370 for the
fiscal yar ended June 30, 2019.

3. Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the
employer rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actual and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan
contributions are determined through CaIPERS' annual actuarial valuation process. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amounts necessary to finance the costs of the
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference between the
actuarially determined rate and the contribution are of employees. Employer contributions may
change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution
requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution
requirements are classified as plan member contributions.

The City's contributions to the plan recognized as pension expense for the year ended June
30, 2019 were $454,404.

b. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2019, the City reported net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability of the Plan ol $4,291,238.

The City's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30,2018, and the
total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by the
actuarial valuation as of June 30,2017 rolled foruvard to June 30, 2018 using standard update
procedures. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City's longterm share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of
all participating employers, actuarial ly determined.

The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30,2017 and
2018 was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.0440o/o

Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.0445o/o

Change - lncrease (Decrease) 0.0005%

Forthe yearended June 30,2019, the City recognized pension expense of $1,032,601. AtJune
30,2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Defened

Outflows of lnflows of
Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date

Differences belween actual and expected experience

Change in assumptions
Differences between the em ployer's contri butions

and the employer's proportionate share of contributions

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments

Change in City's Proportion

85,235

21,156

72 751 27,257

$ 1 15,903

$ 511J42
97,993

386,341

12,880

75,766

$

Total
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2020
2021
2022
2023
Total

$511,142 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2020.

The other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30

$ 418,570
256,804
(e8,740)

061 )
$ 547,573

1. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30,2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age - Normal Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.15o/o

lnflation 2.50o/o

PayrollGrowth 2.75o/o

Projected Salary lncrease 3.30% - 14.20o/o (1)
lnvestment Rate of Return 715% (2)
Morality Derived form CaIPERS Membership

Data for all Funds (3)
(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment.
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.
(3) The morality tables was developed based on CaIPERS specified data. The tables includes

15 years of morality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale of 90% of scale MP
2016.

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarialassumptions used in the June 30,
2017 valuation were based on the results of December 2017 actuarial experience study for the
period 1997 to 2015. Furtherdetails of the Experiences Study can be found on the CaIPERS
website.

2. Change of Assumption

ln 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the
CaIPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. There were
no changes in the discount rate.

3. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will
be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be made at statutorily requires rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the
Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.
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Asset Class tal

The longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pensioni plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

ln determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-
term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected PERF cash flows. Using
historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were
calculated overthe short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-
block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and longterm, the
present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of
benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and longterm returns. The
expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above
and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

New
Strategic

Allocation
Real Return
Years 1-10 (o)

RealReturn
Years 1 1+ (c)

Global Equity
Fixed lncome
lnflation Assets
Private Equity
RealAssets
Liquidity
Total

50.00%
28.000/o

0.00%
8.00%

13.00%

1.00%

4.80o/o

1.00%
0.77%
6.30%
3.7 5o/o

0.00%

5.98%
2.620/o

1.81o/o

7.23o/o

4.93o/o

-0.9204

100.00%

(a) ln the CaIPERS CAFR, Fixed lncomes is included in Global Debt Securities;
Liquidity is included in Short-term lnvestments; lnflation Assets are included
on both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities.

(b) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
(c) An expected inflation of 2.92o/o used for this period.

4. Sensitivity to Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following represents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the City's proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1

percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate +1%

6.15% Rate 7.15% 8.15%
$ 6,339,444 $ A,291,238 $ 2,006,067

5. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
CaIPERS financial reports.

6. Payable to the Pension Plan

The City did not have an outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for
the year ended June 30, 2019.
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19. Joint Ventures (Joint Powers Aqreements)

a. Central San Joaquin Vallev Risk Manaqement Authorily

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement
which establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA).
The relationship between the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component
unit of the City for financial reporting purposes.

The City is covered for the first $1,000,000 of each general liability claim and $350,000 of each
worker's compensation claim through the CSJVRMA. The City has the right to receive
dividends or the obligation to pay assessments based on a formula which, among other
expenses, charges the City's account for liability losses under $25,000 and worker's
compensation losses under $10,000. The CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool which
provides general liability coverage from $1,000,000 to $10,000,000 and purchases excess
reinsurance from $10,000,000 to $15,000,000. The CSJVRMA participates in an excess pool
which provides worker's compensation coverage from $350,000 to $500,000 and purchases
excess reinsurance above $500,000 to the statutory limit.

The CSJVRMA is a consortium of one hundred sixty (160) public entities in California. lt was
established under the provisions of California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. The
CSJVRMA is governed by a Board of Directors, which meets three times per year, consisting of
one representative appointed by each member. The dayto-day business is handled by a
management group employed by the CSJVRMA. The financial position and results of
operations for the CSJVRMA as of June 30, 2019 is presented below:

TotalAssets
Total Liabilities
Members'Equity

Total Revenues for Year
Total Expenses for Year
Excess of lncome Over (Under) Expenses

TotalAssets & Deferred Outflows
Total Liabilities & Deferred lnflows
Member's Equity

Total Revenues for Year
Total Expenses for Year
Excess of lncome Over (Under) Expenses

$

$ 128,442,162
109,661 ,346

$ 18,780,816

53,699,356
52,943,942

$ 755,414

$ 12,632,134
21,355,733

$ (8.723.599)

$ 117,313,404
122 901 100

At the termination of the joint powers agreement and after all claims have been settled, any
excess or deficit will be divided among the cities in accordance with its governing documents.

At June 30, 2019 the City reported $138,316 as Deposits with Others in the Governmental Funds
related to the general liability and workers'compensation programs.

b. Municipalities, Colleqes. Schools lnsurance Group

The Municipalities, Colleges, Schools lnsurance Group (MCSIG) is a public risk sharing pool
established pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement effective November 22,1982, for the purpose
of providing a program of employee health coverage to its member organizations. MCSIG
includes member school districts, colleges, municipalities, and special districts and covers more
than 8,000 employees plus their dependents in the medical, dental and vision programs. A
member may voluntarily withdraw from MCSIG after having completed three consecutive years
as a member. Public Agency Coalition Enterprise (PACE) is an at large district that is a member
organization of MCSIG. The City of Fowler has an agreement with PACE and hence is
considered a member of MCSIG. The relationship between the City and MCSIG is such that
MCSIG is not a component unit of the City for financial reporting purposes. The financial position
and results of operations for MCSIG as of June 30, 2019 is presented below:
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Each member's pro rata share in MCSIG's Equity would be computed and distributed in
accordance with the joint powers agreement, in the event of dissolution or withdrawal. Deficit
net position would be assessed to the members.

20. Commitments and Contifroencies

State and FederalAllowances. Awards and Grants

The City participates in various federal and state financial assistance programs. These programs
are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors, which may be covered by the Single
Audit Act Amendments of 1997 and OMB Circular A-133. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

21. Work in Proqress

The City has contract commitments for construction-in-progress as follows:

Project
Authorization

$ 2,061,985
434,290

Expended to
June 30, 2019 Committed

$ 1,088,488 $ 973,497
434,290

1 5,1 65

New Fire Station
Adams Ave Project
Temperance/Walters Pedestrian Crossin g

lmprovements (1 5,165)

TotalWork in Progress $ 1,537 ,943

22. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City does not provide administrative nor investment advice for the Plan. Therefore, the City is
not required to report the Plan assets and has excluded them from their financial statements.

23. Prior Period Adiustment

The following prior period adjustments were made to the Governmental Funds Financial
Statements.

General Fund

To remove beginning balance for compensated absences from the
governmental fund financial statements and present the balance
on the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. $ 104,949

(52,546)

9,768

146,389

389,082

(3e,181)

(23,274)

To reverse prior year accounts receivable recorded in error,

To reconcile the City's cash in bank balance.

To adjust unearned revenue to actualwith major adjustment related to
1 8/1 9A ROPS/residual payments,

To allocate excess residualallocation and administrative revenue held
in the Successor Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund.

To present prior year transient occupancy tax receivable as unavailable
revenue.

To expense prior years' expenses posted to developer deposits liability
account in error.
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23. Prior Period Adiustment (Continued)

Fire Constructign Fund
To reconcile the City's cash in bank balance

Fowler Public Financi Service Fund
To record adrances from the Redevelopment Successor Agency

Prilate-Purpose Trust Fund and Water Fund for the General
Obligations of the 2010 PFA Bond.

To reclassifu C/P - Merced St. purchased in FY2005 as capitalized
fixed asset - land.

Other Golernmental Funds
To record fiscal year 2018 LTF accounts receir,able as unamilable rerrenues

To record adjusted beginning balance for CDBG loans receiwble on the
gorernmental fund financial statements.

$ 18,025

534,000

(153,794)

$ 380,206

(e,128)

384,891

$ 375,763

The following prior period adjustments were made to the Government-Wrde Financial Statements.

Gorcrnmental Activies
To reclassifu C/P - Merced St purchased in FY2005 as capitalized

fixed asset - land. $ 153,794

To adjust beginning contruction in progress to actual. (1,500)

To adjust beginning accumulated depreciation balance to actual (1,13e,6e0)

To adjust the City's allocation of the beginning Net Pension Liability
and related deferred outflows and deferred according to GASB 68 to
actual for gorcrnmental activities. 120,134

To record all of the openning 2010 Refunding Rewnue Bond balance

To record prior year's interest expense on debt held by the City.

(534,000)

(4e,783)

$ (1,451,045)

Business-tVpe Activities
To adjust the City's allocation of the beginning Net Pension Liability and

related deferred outlfows and deferred inflows according to GASB 68
to actual for the business{ype activities. $ (122,e62)

(23,825)To record prior year's interest expense on debt held by the City
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23. Prior Period Adjustmqnt (Continued)

The following prior period adjustments were made to the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Position related to the Redevelopment Successor Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund.

To allocate excess residual allocation and administratir,e relenue held in
the Successor Agency Priwte-Purpose Trust Fund. $ (38e,082)

To eliminate the prior year allocation of the beginning Net Pension Liabilty
and related deferred outflows and deferred inflows according to GASB 68.

223,288

$(1 65,794)

24. Litiqation

The City is involved in litigation which was settled subsequent to year end. The Litigation Settlement
in covered by insurance except for the retention amount of $25,000.
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CITY OF FOWLER
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Revenue:
Taxes
License and Permits
Fines and Penalties
Revenue lrom Use of Money and Property
Charges for Service
lntergovernmental Revenue
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Culture and Recreation
CapitalOutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers ln
Operating Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Fund Balances - Ending

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

$ 2,717,140 $
981,300

4,000
15,300

383,250
483,800

57,000

2,717,140 $
991,300

4,000
1s,300

383,250
483,800

57,000

3,330,374 $
1,266,169

10,747
37,212

524,399
191 ,696
204,824

613,234
284,869

6,747
21,912

141,149
(292,104\
147,824

4,641,790 4,641,790 5,565,421 923,631

1 ,139,056
2,009,365

371,831
278,929
405,889
430,000

1,139,056
2,009,365

371,831
278,929
405,889
430,000

1,139,589
1,831,085

31 1,618
561,421
294,639

57,628

(533)
178,280
60,213

(282,492)
111,250
372,372

4,635,070 4,635,070

6,720 6,720

4,195,gg0

1,369,441

439,090

405,000
(495,483)

405,000
(495,483) (306,830)

(306,830)

362,721

(405,000)
(188,653)

1

(so ,483) (90,483) 216,347

1,062,611 1,146,374

535,187
$ 1,681,561

(83,763)

3,397,884

(83,763)

3,397,884 3,397,884
535,187

$_-33T+J21 $___!,314J31 $ 4,9es,682
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CITY OF FOWLER
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS"

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Proportion of the net pension liabliltiy

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

Corcred payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its corcred-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as percentage of
total pension liability

143.830/o 2Q7,720/o 222,560/o 2tA.60o/o 269.080/o

81.36% 72.420/o 69.20o/o 69.3,40/o 71.420/o

0.0357%

$ 2,241,019

$ 1,558,059

0.M720/o

$ 3,236,451

$ 1,558,059

0.04460/o

$ 3,856,008

$ 1,732,590

0,Q440o/o

$ 4,363,092

$ 1,783,798

0.04450

$ 4,291,238

$ 1,594,792

NOTES TO SCHEDULE

Change in Benefit Terms - None

Changes in Assumptions- ln December2017, the CaIPERS Board of Administration adopted new mortality
assumptions for plans practicing in Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF), the inflation assumption
was reduced from 2.75 percent to 2.50 percent, and the assumptions for individual salary increases and
overall payroll growth were reduced from 3.00 percent to 2.50 percent.

*Schedule in intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become
available.
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GITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY'S CONTRIBUTIONS
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Actuarially required contribution
(actuarially determined) $ 408,694 $ 424,070 $ 453,902 $ 454,404 $ 511,142

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determ ined contributions 408 694 424,070 453,902 454,404 511 142

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ -$ $ $

Covered payroll $ 1,558,059 $ 1,028,213 $ 1,783,798 $ 1,594,792 $ 1,691,707

Contribitions as a percentage of covered-
payroll 26.23% 24.74% 25.45% 28.49% 30,21%

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.
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Other lndependent Auditor's Reports



lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Sfandards

The Honorable Members of the City Council
Fowler, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the businesstype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Fowler's, as of and for the year ended June30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City of Fowler's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated November 29,2021.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Fowler's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Fowler's internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Fowler's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and quedtioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and other
deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of City of Fowler's
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2O1A-OO2
and 2018-003 to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a materialweakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2018-001 to be significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Fowler's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported u n der G ove rn m e n t Au d iti n g Sfandards.

City of Fowler's Response to Findings

Cjty o.{ Fowler's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. City of Fowler's response was not subjected to the auditirig frocedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of thjs report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
c_ontrol or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Governmental Auditing Sfandards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fresno, California
November 29,2021
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CITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Summary of Auditors' Results

(1) Financial Statements

Type of auditors' report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered

to be material weakness(es)

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

(2) FederalAwards

lnternal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered

to be material weakness(es)

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section.510(a)

ldentification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

X Yes _No
X Yes None reported

Yes X No

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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CITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Financial Statement Findings

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 001 lnternal Controls - Water Consumer Depos/s

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require internal controls which
generate relevant and quality data to support the City's financial information reporting.

Per City Ordinance, "A guarantee deposit with the Water Department made by a consumer who owns
the property receiving services and whose account has not been in arrears at any time during the first
year of such deposit shall be returned after the expiration of said year. lf the service is discontinued
in less than one year, the deposit will be returned provided all outstanding bills against the consumer
for water services have been paid. Any deposit uncalled for or returned within five (5) year after the
date the deposit was made will become the property of, and be retained by, the Water Department.
Deposits of renters will be retained until water services are discontinued."

Condition

During our audit of the water consumer deposits collected by the City from residential and commercial
consumers we noted that while the City hired a CPA consultant firm to review the balance and record
adjustments as considered necessary according to the City's Ordinance, this exercise was done in
arrears during the FY 2020-21 rather than on a routine basis during FY 2018-19.

Effect

The City likely did not have timely and accurate financial information on hand related to the water
consumer deposits balance for residential and commercial customers during FY 2018-19, this can
cause the decision-making process of the City to be faulty.

Cause

The City management was not available to implement City Ordinance on water consumer deposits and
a proper review and reconciliation exercise of the balance on a routine basis.

Questioned Costs

Not able to determine

Recommendation

We recommend City staff administer water deposits accordingly to City ordinance, man
the balance is routinely reviewed for accuracy and a proper audit trail is maintained on
to support the balance on the books.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

age
file

ment ensure
as evidence

The City agrees with this finding. Please refer to the corrective action section within the Findings and
Recommendations section.
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CITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Financial Statement Findings

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 002 lnternal Controls - Water Consumer Overpayments and Accounts Receivabte

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require internal controls which
generate relevant and quality data to support the City's financial information reporting.

Condition

During our audit of the payments received by the City for water service from residential and commercial
consumers we noted that while the City hired a CPA consultant firm to review the water overpayments
liability balance and the accounts receivable balance and record adjustments as considered necbssary,
this exercise was done in arrears during the FY 2020-21 rather than on a routine basis during FY 2018-
19. The consultant firm also found it was not possible to acquire a proper listing of the b-lances by
consumer as the cutoff timeline for generating reports from the financial information system wa3
missed.

Effect

The City likely did not have timely financial information on hand related to the water overpayments and
accounts receivable balances for residential and commercial consumers during FY 2018-i9; this can
cause the decision-making process of the City to be faulty.

Cause

The City management was not available to implement a proper review and reconciliation exercise of
the balances on a routine basis.

Questioned Costs

Not able to determine

Recommendation

We recommend City management ensure that balances are routinely reviewed for accuracy and that a
proper audit trail is maintained on file as evidence to support the balance on the books.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City agrees with this finding. Please refer to the corrective action section within the Findings and
Recommendations section.
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GITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Financial Statement Findings

Finding ldentification

2019 - 003 lnternal Controls - Closing Books

Criteria or Specific Requiremqnt

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America require adequate internal
controls to ensure accounting transactions are properly recorded on the books.

Condition

While conducting our audit, we noted the City did not close its books on a timely basis. We also noted
a high volume of transaction recorded through the adjusting journal entries process rather than the
usual recording processes. Soon after the resignation of the finance director working for the City
during FY 2018119, the City hired a CPA consultant firm to assist with the close of the books. The
CPA consultant firm prepared almost 100 adjusting entries and commented on a general lack of internal
controls and procedures in the financial transaction recording process at the City. ln addition, we
prepared several audit adjustments related to proper cutoff balances for accounts receivable, revenues,
accounts payable and expenditures.

Effect

When a proper and timely closing process is not performed, City staff and constituents may be relying
on faulty and incomplete financial data in making real time decisions or external reporting. This can
lead to a potential material errors in financial presentation at the city, and cause delays in proper cutoff
at year end and a delay the City's annual audit report issued.

Cause

While City management seemed to have made efforts during FY 2018-19 to implement better internal
control processes to safeguard the City's assets and properly record financial transactions at the City
with retaining better audit trails; the process of implementation seemed inconsistent, at times
incomplete and with accounting errors.

Questioned Costs

None

Recommendation

We recommend the City management continue to work on improving the closing process and internal
control processes in accounting of City's financial transactions.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City agrees with this finding. Please refer to the corrective action section within the Findings and
Recommendations section.

59



CITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Financial Statement Findings

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 004 lnternal Controls - Cash

Criteria or Specifiq Resuirement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require internal controls to
safeguard and preserve assets, protect against improper fund disbursement, and to ensure
transactions are properly recorded.

Condition

While auditing the City's cash balances, we noted bank reconciliations were prepared by the CPA firm
consultant hired by the City during FY 2020-21 rather than on a periodic basis during FY 2018-19. We
also noted the CPA Firm consultant made large adjustments to the books due to financial transactions
observed on the bank statements but not recorded on the books, transactions recorded with errors or
duplications on the books, and transactions recorded with timing lags on the books.

Effect

The City operated during the FY 2018-19 with cash balances which were inaccurate and if relied on
could have caused the decision-making process at the City to be relying on inaccurate financial
balances. The lack of periodic review and reconciliations of cash balances is likely to increase the
opportunities for misappropriations and or misuse of City's cash.

Cause

The City management was not available or lacked the technical proficiency to implement proper review
and reconciliation of the cash balances on a routine basis.

Questioned Costs

None

Recommendation

We recommend the City management ensure to implement an appropriate process for the review and
reconciliation of cash balances on a periodic basis with internal controls to ensure the safeguard of the
asset.

Views qf Responsible Officials and Planned Cor:rective Actions

The City agrees with this finding. Please refer to the corrective action section within the Findings and
Recommendations section.
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CITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Financial Statement Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 005 lnternalControls - Expenditures and Credit Cards

Criteria or Specific Reouirement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require internal controls to
safeguard and preserve assets, protect against improper fund disbursement, and to ensure transactions
are properly recorded.

Condition

During our audit of a sample of cash disbursements including disbursements through credit cards issued
by the City to staff we noted the following items of concern:

1. One cash disbursement for engineering services was missing expense authorization.
2. While the City's procedure is for the finance director to review a list of cash disbursements for

authorization prior to warrants being issued, we noticed our expenditure selected for the
walkthrough of this procedure was not on a list of cash disbursements with authorization sign off
by the finance director.

3. The City's policy is to have a credit card use agreement signed by each employee issued a credit
card; we noted not every employee issued a credit card had a signed credit card agreement on file
for the credit card. The documentation on credit cards being issued with the credit card use
agreement was unclear, incomplete or outdated at times and overall a complete and current list of
credit card holders and agreements was not on file for proper tracking and accountability.

4. An audit trail of payment authorization on the credit card balance was lacking on some instances;
even though a copy of the warrant was kept on file in some cases the warrant was issued prior to
approval signatures.

5. We noticed a disbursement in which the City manager was the only individual approving payment
on their charges on the credit card and on a separate disbursement, the City manager documented
the charge on the credit card through a notation on an envelope rather than the use of the Credit
Card Use Form.

6. We noted payment on a credit card balance was paid through automatic withdrawal from the City's
bank account without proper internal control procedures for preapproval of disbursement.

7. We noted expenses paid through credit card being posted to the books in an untimely basis.
8. Even though a Credit Card Use Form was implemented by the City's finance department to provide

for itemization of expenditures charged on the credit card and review and authorization of the
charges by appropriate oversight personnel, we noticed the use of the form was inconsistently
implemented.

9. We noted credit card charges which were paid without supporting receipts and documentation of
expense on file.

Effect
The above issues are the result of breaks on internal controls over cash disbursements and the use of
credit cards. This can result in improper fund disbursement and misuse of credit cards issued by the City.

Cause

The City management seems to have had a difficult time implementing a proper internal control process
over cash disbursements of the City.

Questioned Costs
Unknown
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CITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Financial Statement Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 005 lnternalControls - Expenditures and Credit Cards (continued)

Recommendation

We recommend the City implement an appropriate process for the authorization of cash disbursements
with proper audit trail documentation on file as well as implement its Credit Card Use Policy properly.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City agrees with this finding. Please refer to the corrective action section within the Findings and
Recommendations section.

62



CITY OF FOWLER
SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

Financial Statement Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 006 lnternal Controls - Building Permit and lmpact Fees

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require internal controls to
safeguard and preserve assets, and to ensure transactions are properly recorded.

Condition

During our audit, we selected a sample of building permits and performed procedures to review supporting
documentation for the proper implementation of safeguarding and recording procedures over billing,
collection and recording of the receipts. We noted the following weaknesses in internal controls:

We noticed a handful of the building permits in our sample did not have the signed copy of the building
permit application on file. We viewed an unsigned copy printed from the City's tracking software during
our audit.

For the sample of building permit receipts collected by the City during the year contemporaneous
documentation for calculations and itemizations completed by the building official for assessment of fees
like grading permit fees, electrical permit fees, mechanical permit fees and plumbing permit fees was not
available for audit in considering whether the fees were assessed according to City policy. The building
official in the past audit indicated he used a building permit software in calculating the fees for building
permits at the time of billing the customer, however, documentation on these calculations was not kept on
file. Through verbal recalculations provided by the building otficial it seemed assessment of fees had
been completed based on adopted City policy. ln addition, the building official seemed to be the only staff
responsible for assessment of fees without a level of review and oversight over his work in this area.

Effect

The lack of proper documentation for fees assessed and the lack of review and oversight over the building
officials' duties is a weakness in internal controls which can lead to the City's assessment of fees to be
considered questionable and open to conflict with the City's citizen's trust in the appropriateness of the
City's procedures and policies when assessing fees.

Cause

The City seems to have struggled with the accountability aspect in the building department as well as the
communication and record retention in this department. The finance department expressed implementing
efforts to better the process during FY 2018-19 however, it seems the implementation was not addressed
as planned. The building official during FY 2018-19 is no longer employed by the City, this may have atso
led to the lack of signed building permit applications or the misplacement of them.

Questioned Costs
Unknown

Recommendation

We recommend the following: the City retains signed building permit applications on file for accountability
and support of building and impact fees assessed on each build permit issued; the City implement an audit
trail that includes documentation of calculations and itemizations prepared to arrive at all fees assessed
when issuing building permit fees and we recommend a process of review and oversight over the building
officials work of fees assessment is implemented to help identify any possible omissions or errors in the
assessment of fees and ensure assessment of fees is according to City adopted policies.

Views of Responsible Offigials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City agrees with this finding. Please refer to the corrective action section within the Findings and
Recommendations section.

63



CITY OF FOWLER
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Financial Statement Findings

Finding ldentification

2019 - 001 lnternal Controls - Water Consumer Deposds

Name of contact person: Margarita Moreno, Finance Director

Corrective Action: The city is in the process of making the changes to administer water deposits
accordingly to City ordinance, and to implement a procedure to review balances on a timely basis for
accuracy with all supporting documents to balance the books.

Proposed Completion Date: Fiscal Year 21-22

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 002 lnternal Controls - Water Consumer Overpaymenfs and Accounts Receivable

Name of contact person: Margarita Moreno, Finance Director

Corrective Action: The city is in the process of making the changes to implement a procedure to review
balances on a timely basis for accuracy with all supporting documents to balance the books.

Proposed Completion Date: Fiscal Year 21-22

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 003 lnternal Controls - Closing Books

Name of contact person: Margarita Moreno, Finance Director

Corrective Action: The city is in the process of making the changes to implement a procedure manual
for the accounting of the City's financial transactions for internal control and closing process.

Proposed Completion Date: Fiscal Year 21-22

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 004 lnternal Controls - Cash

Name of contact person: Margarita Moreno, Finance Director

Corrective Action: The city is in the process of making changes to implement a procedure for the
review and reconciliation of cash balances on a periodic basis with internal controls to ensure the
safeguard of the asset.

Proposed Completion Date: Fiscal Year 21-22
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CITY OF FOWLER
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 005 lnternalControls - Expenditures and Credit Cards

Name of contact person: Margarita Moreno, Finance Director

Corrective Action: The city in the process of making changes to internal control in implementing the
appropriate process for the authorization of cash disbursements with proper audit trail documentation
on file as well as implement its Credit Card Use Policy properly.

Proposed Completion Date: FiscalYear 21-22

Findinq ldentification

2019 - 006 lnternal Controls - Building Permit and lmpact Fees

Name of contact person: Margarita Moreno, Finance Director

Corrective Action: The city is in the process of making changes to retain the required documents for
auditing purposes and support of building and impact fees assessed on each build permit issued;
implement an audit trail that includes documentation of calculations and itemizations prepared,
implement a process of review and oversight over the building officials work of fees assessment
according to City adopted policies.

Proposed Completion Date: FiscalYear 21-22
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2.

GITY OF FOWLER
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Find inq/Recommendation

We were unable to test the accuracy of water consumer deposits balance of $98,157 collected by the
City form residential and commercial consumers since the City did not review the balance on a routine
basis or maintain an audit trail of supporting documentation as evidence of the propriety of the balance
on the books.

ln response to our comments during the audit and suspecting the balances were misstated, after fiscal
year end, City finance prepared a general review of the balances for the purpose of offering an estimate
of balances, they suspect they may be expired deposits as of June 30, 2018. As a result of this exercise,
allowance for doubtful accounts has been presented on the financial statements with the understanding
that city finance staff will prepare a more diligent review of consumer deposit balances for the upcoming
audit year.

It was recommended that the City staff administer water deposits accordingly to City ordinance,
management ensure the balance is routinely reviewed for accuracy and a proper audit trail is
maintained on file as evidence to support the balance on the books.

Current Status

Partially lmplemented.

Citv Explanation if not imolemented

Due to personnel changes and delays in performing audits of financial statements the
recommendations are still in the process of being implemented, we anticipate resolution by the 2021-
2022fiscalyear.

Find inq/Recommendation

We were unable to test the accuracy of the liability balance of $32,902 related to water consumer
overpayments on account and water consumer accounts receivable balance of $154,883 since the City
does not review the balances on a routine basis to ensure they are accurately record on City's books
or maintain an audit trail of supporting documentation as evidence of the balances.,

ln response to our comments during the audit and suspecting the balances were misstated, after fiscal
yar end City finance prepared a general review of the balances for the purpose of offering an estimate
of balances, they suspected may no longer be valid. As a result of this exercise, and allowance for
doubtful accounts has been presented on the financial statements with the understanding that city
finance staff will prepare a diligent review water consumer overpayment balances and water consumer
accounts receivable balances for the upcoming audit year.

It was recommended that the City management ensure that balances are routinely reviewed for
accuracy and that a proper audit trail is maintained on file as evidence to support the balance on the
books.

Current Status

Partially I mplemented.

Citv Explanation if not implemented

Due to personnel changes and delays in performing audits of financial statements the
recommendations are still in the process of being implemented, we anticipate resolution by the 202'1-
2022liscalyear.
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CITY OF FOWLER
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

3. Findinq/Recommendation

While conducting our audit, we prepared thirty plus audit adjustments related to matters involving the
accounting, year-end closing, and reporting in several areas of the audit. The audit adjustments include
adjusting for proper cutoff balances for accounts receivable, revenues, accounts payable, expenditures,
proper allocation of cash in bank balances for the funds at the City according to their corresponding
checkbook, recording activity on PFA books in agreement with trustee statements and adjusting to
actual interfund activity between funds of the city.

It was recommended that the City management and staff continue to work on improving the closing
process and internal control processes in accounting of City's financial transactions. This will help to
ensure both activities align with accounting principles general accepted in the United States of America.

Gurrent Status

Not lmplemented.

Citv Explanation if not implemented

Due to personnel changes and delays in performing audits of financial statements the
recommendations are still in the process of being implemented, we anticipate resolution by the 2021-
2022 fiscal year.
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